Chapter 2

Thankful that they were now bound together in a Christian commmity,
the small congregation of the newly-established Presbyterian Ctmrch locked
to the future with enthusiasm and determination. Hopefully, the day would
soon arrive when they could worship in their own sanctuary. They could
expect same help fram the Presbytery and fram the General Assembly, but if
their church were to become an effective voice for Christ in Mt. Pleasant,
they knew that all must give genercusly of their time, their substance,
their labor, and their prayer.

The Reverend Luke Nott, whose missicnary efforts had led to the
establishment of the church, served as pastor of the new institution.
During much of the week he traveled about Isabella County on his missicnary
rounds visiting hamlets and lumber camps. Sunday morning, however, found
him in Mt. Pleasant preaching to the Presbyterians from the pulpit of the
Methodist Church. Later in the day he would journey to Calkinsville
(Rosebush) to conduct Sabbath afternoon services. Evidence seems to
indicate that the Board of Home Missicns of the General Assembly and the
Saginaw Presbytery may have agreed to pay half of Nott's ammual salary
with the remaining half (probably $300) the responsibility of the Mt.
Pleasant congregation.
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The steeple of the Court Street church may be seen in the center of this
bird's-eye view of Mt. Pleasant, 1884.



The women of the church were particularly active in raising funds for
its support. The congregation had accepted the cbligation to pay its share
ufthamﬁﬁster*ssalaryh;thadmfnnmlplannrprmﬂ:mtnauquimﬂﬂ
necessary money. Indeed, money was apparently such a scarce commodity at
thatimthatbbttmsfameﬂtnameptapnﬂimufhissala:yinmm
and in mercantile orders. To pay the major portion of it, the women
members scheduled "donation" dimmers at frequent intervals. Everyone in
the comunity was invited to these feast and fim affairs. There was no
charge for the dimmer but before leaving, all who attended "donated" same-

Ihebardmufmtainirgtmdiwmfeuhemdlymtmmlmra—
gation which, during its first year, attracted few new members. Fortunately,
several former members of the First Presbyterian Society, although they did
not affiliate with the cangregation, strongly supported efforts to erect a
church building. At a congregational meeting early in May, 1873, nine men
won electicn to a Board of Trustees and were delegated "to take charge of
the church property and to transact such business as may come before them
fram time to time."

at a cost of "not less than $2,000.00." To accamplish this resclve, it
provided for the solicitation of a building fund, "for the procuring of a
suitable lot for the church," and for the acquisition of "the timber and
lurber as well as the other necessary material for building." Construction
would begin in the spring of 1874 and be campleted by the following October.

On the day following the meeting of the trustees, I, A. Fancher started
the subscription list on its rounds of the village with a pledge of $100.
Before the week ended many others had added their names and pledges to the
list. Pleased with the decision to erect a church home and with the seem-
ﬁglymﬁdsmpwtﬂfﬂmmwmﬂﬂmm,ﬂﬁwﬁm
joyfully locked to the time a few months hence when construction would
actually begin. But developments during the late summer months depressed
their hopes and crushed their enthusiasm. In Septenber a disastrous
finamialpa:ﬁcmptmtnfﬂneﬁsttnmnmltpmﬂﬁ i
village of Mt. Pleasant. Caught up in the fears of the time, citizens
quarded their slim resources. As trade slowed and business slackened, few
were willing to contribute to a building fund. Would those who had already
pledged be able to honor their commitments?

At Doughty's call, the Board of Trustees convened again early in
January, 1874. D&spitaumﬁhmﬂ'?m:ﬂﬁmes"mﬂﬂemuitynfw,
the Board decided to proceed with the erection of the building as planned.
Thereupon, Doughty appointed Charles Slater, Hopkins, and Fancher to a
committee to prepare plans, specifications, and estimated costs. Slater
was well-qualified to head the committee. This twenty-six year old carpenter
incmganywithhisparmﬂa:ﬂsistem,fadjuﬁ:udﬂndmdithemwims
year and had ever since been exceptionally active in its promotion. Indeed,
earlier on this Sabbath day, Jarmary 3, 1874, he had been ordained as a
ruling elder of the chwrch which he would continue to serve as a trustee.
Doughty named a second committee consisting of D. H. Gilman and Alexander
Stevenscn, both of whom were local grocery and dry—-goods merchants, and
himself "to see about a lot or lots on whi to build & to receive proposals.'
Befmadjmhg,ﬂﬂma:dagreedthatﬂul&diunfﬂnsmiatyﬂﬂﬂd
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Charles Slater served as a ruling elder of First Presbyterian Church for
more than a half-century.

circulate the all-important subscription list to raise additional funds
for construction.

Despite the cold of a Michigan winter and the frozen barremmness all
about them, the Presbyterians in their mind's eve could dismiss the ice and
snow and envision a spring scene a few months hence and their own house of
worship rising scmewhere in the village. After his committee had investi-
gated several sites and reported to the Board of Trustees, Doughty called
that body into sessicn on February 7, 1874 to make its decisicn. In
addition to eight trustees, the Reverend Mott, another man and seven women
of the congregation were also present. After prayer, the group spent much
of the remainder of this Sunday afternoon discussing proposed building sites.
The most favored location lay just east of the courthouse square. Cornelius
Bemnett, who owned many town lots, offered to contribute cne-half of the
value of the site as his share of the building fund. Since the lot in
question had an acknowledged valuaticn of $400, Bennett's offer represented
a gift of $200. Pleased though they were with this development, the
trustees internupted their discussion long enocugh to have two of their
matber, Hopkins and Henry Boutcn, "wait on" Bennett and learn how large a
sum he would contribute to the building fund in lieu of the half-value of
the lot if the Board should select another site. The two callers retuwrned
shortly to announce that the lot owner would limit a cash donation to $40.
Thereupcon, Fancher moved and Doughty seconded "that Mr. Bennett's lot be

on the best terms he would make, all present members of the society
being allowed to vote." Twelve of the fifteen persons casting ballots
approved the motion. The Presbyterians of Mt. Pleasant had selected a site
for their church home.
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Bermett’s temms for the sale of his lot included provision for payment
over a period of time, No sconer had the trustees campleted the purchase
mmﬂmlaﬂies'hid&xiety,wﬂﬁmstfminpmtingthe
m,quadatemﬂifmﬂ-ﬂisﬂuaﬁﬂrttnpayfurthesit&. In
aﬁiﬁmhﬂmdmﬁmﬁmsﬂﬁchitmmm,ﬂmsmiety
sponsored music festivals, ice cream socials, spelling socials, and just
plain socials—twenty-one in all during the year. On one occasion the
receipts totalled only seven dollars. By Octcber, 1875, however, the
Society had paid in full for the church site.

H&m&ﬁl&,um&usualinmid—ﬁichigan,wintermﬁmlmtmrtm
give up its hold on the land. But as the days lengthened, hints of spring
were everywhere apparent. Soon the last of the snow had melted and trickled
away to the turbid Chippewa. Aware that the time for action was at hand,
ﬂumaﬂnfmmtagmmmmlmssimmasmm*ﬁm
early in April. Tts resources were slim for cnly a few of the contributors
t:ﬂ:ekmilﬂingﬂmdhaihamabletnpayﬂﬂrmj:mriptimsmmh.
Ehmﬂmlass,ﬂetmstaesrevimmdhuildimplmmﬂmﬁepmpaﬁtim
begin construction as soon as possible. Two of their mmber, Slater amd
Fancher, were delegated to secure building materials. Before the month
arﬂedcx—dmmlmbermmmﬁ:ledwarﬂuprmitivemdsnfﬂnsur-
rounding stumpland to deliver freshly sawed pine and hemlock to the site.
Me@rﬁgﬂmmﬁqmsmnfmemmmmﬂﬂ
lumber and other materials for the start of construction.

Actual construction began early in July. By the end of the month,
hithmstufthelahm-mmtributedbythetrustaas,theﬂmumﬂﬂatt,ard
cﬂﬂmnfthedmh,ﬂwfnwﬂatimmsnmpletemﬂmﬂcmﬂﬂuppar
- structure was underway. Work continued scmewhat sporadically during the
sumer and fall, but by the Christmas season the Presbyterians knew that
within a few weeks the doors of their new sanctuary would cpen to them.
meuaqrmrmmuuadﬂm"quitemdammﬂhmﬂmn“mmarﬂ
Suspended from the ceiling a "12 light chandelier." To the editor of the
lmlmwwﬂmmﬂl—hﬂ—mletaﬂﬂnmhm“mm,mtmly
to the industry and perseverance of those who erected it," but to Mt.
Pleasant and Isabella County as well. In his opinion it was "the finest
building in the county, being commodious, finely designed, well built,
tastefully finished and furnished."

The Presbyterians were determined that their church should be dedicated
to the worship of God with fitting ceremony. Congregations throughout
mmmmmﬁmmmmjmmmmmmm
was to be held on Sunday afternoon, January 31, 1875, On the designated
day,ﬂtﬂﬂvmﬂﬂmsuiﬁﬂmnf&stsagmmﬂﬁdﬂicatmy
sermon before the largest gathering of Christians ever assembled in the
county. , :

Occupancy of their own church home posed new problems for the
Presbyterians, In the past they had encountered difficulty raising funds
to pay their minister. Now with their mumbers only slightly increased they
muist also maintain a building and pay the balance due for its construction.
With some work yet to be done, it had already cost 53,500, mich more than
anticipated. In recognition of this situation and in gratitude for God's
blessing, scme members and same non-members at the time of the dedicatien
hﬂmlyinﬂrmsnﬂﬂuirsnbmipﬁumbﬂuhuilﬂingﬁmﬂ:mm,
the total pledged amounted to less than $2,500. Because of straitened
econamic conditions and the scarcity of money, however, same subscribers
were unable to honor their pledges. Thus, at the time of occupancy more
than $2,200 in building costs remained unpaid.
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A view of the Court Street church in 1885. The man in front of the build-
ing is probably the Reverend F. A. Bissell, pastor of First Presbyterian
fram 1885 to 1BE7.

At a meeting early in February the trustees endeavored to ease the
financial crisis confronting the chirch. Of immediate concern was the
pastor's salary for the forthcoming year. The Ladies' Aid Society had
contributed generously for this purpose, but it now had determined to pay
the balance owing on the church lot and could not be expected to do as much
as in the past. The Board of Home Missions would continue to pay half of
the salary, but some new means had to be found to provide the remainder.
Haﬂte:rthanseekuﬂ;w&mlpledges as in former years, the trustees
decided to rent the church pews on a yearly basis and allocate the monthly
payments to the minister. To this end, on Saturday afternmoon, February 13,
1875, they accepted sealed bids for the choice of pews. With an offer of
$2.00 monthly, I. A. Fancher won the right to make the first selection and
chose pew #21. Wilkinson Doughty bid $1.70 for pew #25. In all, the 28
bids received--ranging as low as 25 cents—promised an income of $23.07
monthly and $276.84 yearly to meet the $300 salary commitment.

The Reverend Mott began his pastoral year on March 1, 1875. He had
now served the church and the camumity for more than three years and had
won many friends. To provide him with a portion of his salary immediately,
the church arranged for a "donation" on March 17. "As usual," said the
announcement, " we anticipate a good attendance, good cheer, a pleasant time
generally, and a liberal purse for our pastor." Despite a late winter storm
which by the next day had blanketed the town under fourteen inches of snow,
tovnspecple crowded into the church on the appointed evening. The number
present, reported the local newspaper, "testifies to the esteem with which
Elder Nott is held in our midst. There was lots of fun, plenty of ham, and
the flow of genercsity we are informed, reached the fiqure of $170.00."

If the newspaper account is correct, the trustees retained a portion
of the proceeds to meet other church expense. They paid Nott $82.77 in cash
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and $42.50 in house rent, provisions, and trade orders, But this was his
only substantial payday! For the remainder of his year of service he
receivadhissalaryindrihlats,thedmrchtreaswtmﬂngmmrtuhﬁn
the pew rental income as it was received. In addition to house rental
creditadtn!htt'ssalary,hemsalmpaidinuurdbmdmﬂmtter. At the
w'smﬂ,ﬂmtraam,muhlem:aimwughmhmmtﬂwbahme
nfﬂnpastnr'ssalary,paidhimwiuzthedmbimﬂfmmmchmbem.
In all, Nott received 5301.99, a sum slightly in excess of his pramised

huldugﬁnﬂmttfﬂ;rmmwbytﬂrﬂermgmlmmﬂwmch,
because of the money shortage, found ready acceptance in the village and
Circulated freely.

As the months passed,ﬂmrwmmchq:icklybe:am&an influential
center for Christian worship and teaching in the newly-incorporated village
of Mt. Pleasant, Tovmspeople, regardless of their faith, locked to the new

11di as a symbol of progress, as an irdication of the better times and

ngragaﬁmnademllmtusenfit:mfacility. The crowded
1pawsatb:ﬂ1ﬂ155mﬂaymnﬁngmdsmﬂayevemngsendmsae=mdmbelie
ﬂmfactthattrufallwshiphadattractedmﬂyrﬁ:emwmwswmg
1875. Indeed, many townspeople who were umnaffiliated with any dencmination
regularly attended the Presbyvterian services. Tre Thursday night prayer
meetings were alsoc well attended, Frequently, on or
evenings the women of the church Sponsored “"socials," musicales, lectures,
‘or other types of entertairment. Thaladies'ﬁidsnciatymetwaakly-m—
ﬁn&satﬂmdﬂmh,mtmnftmatthehmsnfms. Sametimes a
-MBsima:ymﬂﬂmqpreaﬂﬂarMmiwmmmmtdﬂly
senrimsmth&san:tuarymm:aperinﬂnfawe&mm.

activity. Earlymthemmin;ufﬂugustEthedIeaﬂndclmlgingnfﬂﬁfire
b&lls&nttraciﬁmcfthavilhgamlmgfrmﬂmirbeﬂsmﬂhuﬂymg
into their clothes to fight the blaze. Mt FPleasant was "a wooden town,"
and its people were well aware that a fire, regardless of its location,
mmamaﬂmeattaemryrmemﬂhuildjngintheﬁlhga. Despite the
ﬂazmger,ﬂieummhadﬁtmpurﬂmafimmﬁﬁ. Those who first reached
Emmfﬂmﬂﬂﬂnightskyaheadyalightasming,mrﬂ-drimfm
swept unchecked down & block of adjoined stores. Nothing could be done to
'mﬁﬁpnarlymmntedfmbuildmgsinﬂtepathufﬂnﬂm. But
> r Wamen, and children-—worked frantically through the night
o save the rest of the town. They poured water on the roofs of
Etnrasarﬂlﬂmarﬂh]mgmakedm:pethhlmﬂmts,arkihnlapbagsm

Despite their heavy loss, scme businessmen—including several members
IﬂfrierdaﬂfﬂmPreshatm:imﬂmrﬂh"haganrebuildingheﬁureﬂulast
mber was extinguished, Within a week's time a few had replenished their
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stock and were again in business at improvised sites. Before the year ended,
new, more substantial buildings had risen to zll but cbscure the desolation
resulting from the fire.

Stunned though they were by the disaster, the townspeople, too, quickly
recovered and soon proceeded with their affairs in a normal mamner. On a
Friday morning only three weeks after the fire, at a time when Mt. Pleasant's
populaticn was less than 800, more than a lhundred children and adults
gathered at the church to set forth on a Presbyterian Sunday School Picnie.
Leading the procession of farm wagons to the picnic site at the Indian camp-
meeting east of town was a gaily decorated carry-all "with twenty-
three gay and happy hearts on board." Joining in the festivities were
Sunday School groups from the nearby Mission and Salt Creek (Shepherd)
churches, The men quickly constructed a long table and the women loaded it
"to almost breaking weight with cake, pies, biscuit, sandwiches, chickens,
ham, goose, and peppers and spice and 21l things nice.” After eating it
clm"mmeptfuraﬂum&nimcﬂmsuﬂahmtﬂwmhmhlsuffmtﬂ,"
the picnickers spent a long and pleasant afterncon, the children frolicking
and the clder folks remembering "how wild, happy, and free" they were when
they were children on picnic day.

Their first Christmas in their new church proved to be ancther joyful
occasion for the Presbyterians and their friends. On the eve of the holiday,
groups of carolers approached the brightly lighted church over the snow
covered wooden sidewalks leading to its deor. Inside was a Christmas tree
decorated with "fixings and goodies.” The throng of happy children and
adults provided their own entertaimment—group singing, choral murbers and
solos, and tableaux vivants. To cap the festive evening, Santa Claus arrived
WywmomemM}mﬂdisﬂihMgﬁmmwuﬂ

When spring arrived the Reverend Nott ended his pastorate at the First
Presbyterian Church. In appreciation of the role this "faithful and consci-
entious worker" had played in the crganization of the church, and of his
five years of service thersafter, the congregation pramoted a second
"donation" for his benefit. Entertaimment for the evening included "a
pleasant medley of attractive features.” There was "Music, both choral and
solos, Tableaux, Reading, and Singing by Prof. Curtis' Scheol." Unlike the
affair of the previous year, the total proceeds of the evening were given to
the minister. BHe preached his farewell sermon on April 1, 1876, and left
the town. With him went the love and gratitude of the many friends he had
made in the cut-over lands of mid-Michigan.




